
 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
911 SUNSET DRIVE, HOLLISTER, CALIFORNIA 

THURSDAY, APRIL 27, 2023 – 5:00 P.M. 
SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2ND-FLOOR, GREAT ROOM 

 
Mission Statement - The San Benito Health Care District is a public agency that serves as a responsive, 
comprehensive health care resource for its patients, physicians, and the health care consumers of the community. 
Vision Statement - San Benito Health Care District is committed to meeting community health care needs with 
quality care in a safe and compassionate environment. 

 
San Benito Health Care District is a public agency that serves as a responsive, comprehensive health care 

resource for its patients, physicians and the community. 
 

AGENDA  
 
Presented By: 

  
1. Call to Order / Roll Call   

 
2. Board Announcements  

  
3. Public Comment 

This opportunity is provided for members of the public to make a brief statement, 
not to exceed three (3) minutes, on matters within the jurisdiction of this District 
Board, which are not otherwise covered under an item on this agenda.  This is the 
appropriate place to comment on items on the Consent Agenda. Board Members 
may not deliberate or take action on an item not on the duly posted agenda. 
Written comments for the Board should be provided to the Board clerk for the 
official record. Whenever possible, written correspondence should be submitted 
to the Board in advance of the meeting to provide adequate time for its 
consideration. Speaker cards are available.  

 
4. Consent Agenda – General Business   (Pages 1 – 33) 

The Consent Agenda deals with routine and non-controversial matters. The vote on the 
Consent Agenda shall apply to each item that has not been removed. A Board Member 
may pull an item from the Consent Agenda for discussion. One motion shall be made to 
adopt all non-removed items on the Consent Agenda. 

 
A. Consider and Approve Minutes of the Regular and Special Meeting of the Board of 

Directors - March 23, 2023 
 
B. Consider and Approve Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors – 

March 30, 2023 
 
 

(Hernandez) 
 
(Hernandez) 
 
(Hernandez) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(Hernandez) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, April 27, 2023  Page 2 
 

 
 

C. Consider and Approve Policies:  (Pages 7 – 8) 
o Board Policy - Absence of SBHCD Interim Chief Executive Officer 
o Board Policy - Ethics and Education Training Relating to Work-Place 

Harassment  
 

D. Consider Approval of Resolution No. 2023-25 Adopting Amended and Restated 
District Bylaws  (Pages 9 – 20) 

 
E. Consider and Approve Rescheduling of the May 25 Regular Board Meeting to May 

22, 2023 
 
F. Receive Officer/Director Written Reports  - No action required.  (Pages 21 – 33) 

 
o Chief Clinical Officer/Patient Care Services (Acute Facility)  
o Provider Services & Clinic Operations  
o Skilled Nursing Facilities Reports (Mabie Southside/Northside)  
o Laboratory 
o Foundation Report  
o Marketing/Public Relations 

 
Recommended Action:  Approval of Consent Agenda Item (A) through (F). 
 
 Report 
 Board Questions 
 Motion/Second 
 Action/Board Vote-Roll Call 

 
5. Medical Executive Committee  (Pages 34 – 37) 

  
A. Consider and Approve Medical Staff Credentials: April 19, 2023 

 
 Recommended Action:  Approval of Credentials. 
 

 Report 
 Board Questions 
 Public Comment 
 Motion/Second 
 Action/Board Vote-Roll Call 

 
B. Receive Medical Staff Synopsis:  April 19, 2023  

 
6. Board Education –Financial Options Presentation 

 
7. Receive Informational Reports   

 
A. Interim Chief Executive Officer (CEO) (Page 38) 

 
B. Finance Committee  (Pages 39 – 52) 

 
1. Finance Committee Meeting Minutes – April 20, 2023   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(Dr. Bogey) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(B. Riley) 
 
 
(Casillas) 
 
(Robinson) 
 
 
 



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, April 27, 2023  Page 3 
 

 
 

2. Review Financial Updates (Pages 42 – 52) 
• Financial Statements – March 2023   
• Finance Dashboard – March 2023   
• Labor to Total Expense 
• Savings Tracker 

 
8. Action Items:  

 
A. Consider Board Resolution No. 2023-26 Authorizing the District to Enter Into a Line 

of Credit with a Commercial Lender in an Amount Not to Exceed $10,000,000, if 
Needed  (Pages 53 – 60) 
 

 Report 
 Board Questions 
 Motion / Second 
 Public Comment 
 Action / Vote by Board-Roll Call 

 
B. Consider Recommendation for Board Approval of an Agreement with TreanorHL 

Seismic Compliance Architect in an Amount Not to Exceed $170,000  (Pages 61 – 68) 
 

 Report 
 Board Questions 
 Motion / Second 
 Public Comment 
 Action / Vote by Board-Roll Call 

 
C. Consider Recommendation for Board Approval of Martin M. Bress, M.D. Professional 

Services Agreement, with a 1-Year Term with Auto Renewal and  $6,000 Annually 
(Pages 69 – 75) 

 
 Report 
 Board Questions 
 Motion / Second 
 Public Comment 
 Action / Vote by Board-Roll Call 

 
D. Consider Recommendation for Board Approval of Hongguang Liu, M.D. Professional 

Services Agreement, with a 3-Year Term and $180,000 Annually Plus Travel 
Reimbursement  (Pages 76 – 87) 

 
 Report 
 Board Questions 
 Motion / Second 
 Public Comment 
 Action / Vote by Board-Roll Call 

 
9. Public Comment 

This opportunity is provided for members to comment on the closed session topics, not to 
exceed three (3) minutes. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(B. Riley) 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
(Robinson) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(Robinson) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(Robinson) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(Hernandez) 
 
 



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, April 27, 2023 Page 4 

10. Closed Session
(See Attached Closed Session Sheet Information)

11. Reconvene Open Session / Closed Session Report

12. Adjournment

Depending upon the Board’s action, above, the next Meeting of the Board of Directors is
rescheduled to Monday, May 22, 2023 at 5:00 p.m., and will be held in person.

(Hernandez) 

(Hernandez) 

(Hernandez) 

The complete Board packet including subsequently distributed materials and presentations is 
available at the Board Meeting, in the Administrative Offices of the District, and posted on the 
District’s website at https://www.hazelhawkins.com/news/categories/meeting-agendas/.  All 
items appearing on the agenda are subject to action by the Board.  Staff and Committee 
recommendations are subject to change by the Board. 

Any public record distributed to the Board less than 72 hours prior to this meeting in 
connection with any agenda item shall be made available for public inspection at the District 
office. Public records distributed during the meeting, if prepared by the District, will be 
available for public inspection at the meeting. If the public record is prepared by a third party 
and distributed at the meeting, it will be made available for public inspection following the 
meeting at the District office. 

Notes:  Requests for a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary 
aids or services, to attend or participate in a meeting should be made to District Administration 
during regular business hours at 831-636-2673. Notification received 48 hours before the 
meeting will enable the District to make reasonable accommodations. 



Closed Session Meeting of the Board of Directors, April 27, 2023  Page 1 
 

SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 APRIL 27, 2023 

 
AGENDA FOR CLOSED SESSION 

 
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.2 and 54954.5, the board agenda may describe closed session agenda 
items as provided below.  No legislative body or elected official shall be in violation of Section 54954.2 or 54956 if the closed 
session items are described in substantial compliance with Section 54954.5 of the Government Code. 
 

CLOSED SESSION AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 
[   ] LICENSE/PERMIT DETERMINATION 

(Government Code §54956.7) 
 
Applicant(s): (Specify number of applicants)         
 
 
[X] CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 

(Government Code §54956.8) 
 
Property:  190 Maple Street, Hollister CA 
 
Agency negotiator:  Mary Casillas    
 
Negotiating parties: City of Hollister 
 
Under negotiation:  
Price and Terms 
 
[   ] CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-EXISTING LITIGATION 

(Government Code §54956.9(d)(1)) 
 
Name of case: (Specify by reference to claimant's name, names of parties, case or claim numbers): 
                   , or 
 
Case name unspecified: (Specify whether disclosure would jeopardize service of process or existing settlement 
negotiations):               
 
 
[X] CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

(Government Code §54956.9) 
 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Section 54956.9(d)(2) or (3) (Number of potential cases): ____ 
 
Additional information required pursuant to Section 54956.9(e):      
 
Initiation of litigation pursuant to Section 54956.9(d)(4) (Number of potential cases): 1     .            
 
[  ] LIABILITY CLAIMS 

(Government Code §54956.95) 
 
Claimant: (Specify name unless unspecified pursuant to Section 54961):     
Agency claimed against: (Specify name):     . 
 
 



Closed Session Meeting of the Board of Directors, April 27, 2023  Page 2 
 
[   ] THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES 

(Government Code §54957) 
 
Consultation with: (Specify the name of law enforcement agency and title of officer):     
 
[   ] PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT 

(Government Code §54957) 
 
Title:   
 
[  ] PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT 

(Government Code §54957) 
 
Title: 
  
[   ] PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

(Government Code §54957) 
 
Title: (Specify position title of the employee being reviewed):         
 
[   ] PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE 

(Government Code §54957) 
 

(No additional information is required in connection with a closed session to consider discipline, dismissal, or 
release of a public employee. Discipline includes potential reduction of compensation.) 

 
[X ] CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 

(Government Code §54957.6) 
 
 Agency designated representative:  Mary Casillas, Mark Robinson, and Barbara Vogelsang. 
  
 Employee organization:  California Nurses Association, California Licensed Vocational Nurses 
 Association, ESC, National Union of Healthcare Workers 
  
 Unrepresented employee:  All positions. 
 
[   ] CASE REVIEW/PLANNING 

(Government Code §54957.8) 
(No additional information is required to consider case review or planning.) 
 
 

[X] REPORT INVOLVING TRADE SECRET 
(Government Code §37606 & Health and Safety Code § 32106) 

 
Discussion will concern: (Specify whether discussion will concern proposed new service, program, or facility): 

 
1. Trade Secrets, Strategic Planning, Proposed New Programs, and Services. 

 
Estimated date of public disclosure: (Specify month and year): unknown 
 
 
 



Closed Session Meeting of the Board of Directors, April 27, 2023  Page 3 
 
[  ] HEARINGS/REPORTS 

(Government Code §37624.3 & Health and Safety Code §§1461, 32155) 
 
Subject matter: (Specify whether testimony/deliberation will concern staff privileges, report of medical audit 
committee, or report of quality assurance committee): 
 
[   ] CHARGE OR COMPLAINT INVOLVING INFORMATION PROTECTED 

BY FEDERAL LAW (Government Code §54956.86) 
 

(No additional information is required to discuss a charge or complaint pursuant to Section 54956.86.) 
 
 
 
 
ADJOURN TO OPEN SESSION 
 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2ND-FLOOR, GREAT ROOM 

THURSDAY, MARCH 23, 2023 

MINUTES 

HAZEL HAWKINS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 

   Directors Present 
Jeri Hernandez, Board Member 

Bill Johnson, Board Member 

Devon Pack, Board Member 

Josie Sanchez, Board Member 

Rick Shelton, Board Member 

Also Present 
Mary Casillas, Interim Chief Executive Officer 

Mark Robinson, Chief Financial Officer 

Heidi A. Quinn, District Legal Counsel 

Tiffany Rose, Executive Assistant 

1. Call to Order

Directors Hernandez, Johnson, Pack, Sanchez, and Shelton were present; attendance was taken by roll call.

A quorum was present and President Jeri Hernandez called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

2. Board Announcements

None.

3. Public Comment

An opportunity was provided for public comment and individuals were given three minutes to address the

Board Members and Administration.

4. Consent Agenda - General Business

A. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, February 23, 2023.

B. Policies:

1. Equipment Service and Maintenance

2. Advance Beneficiary Notice (ABN) of Noncoverage for Laboratory Outpatients

3. Non-Exempt Meal and Rest Break Policy

C. Receive Officer/Director Written Reports – Written reports were included in the packet and no action

required.

1. Chief Clinical Officer/Patient Care Services (Acute Facility)

2. Provider Services & Clinic Operations

3. Skilled Nursing Facilities Reports (Mabie Southside/Northside)

4. Laboratory

5. Foundation Report

6. Marketing/Public Relations

Page 1



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, March 23, 2023 Page 2 

Director Hernandez presented the consent agenda items before the Board for action.  This information was 

included in the Board packet. 

An opportunity was provided for the public to comment and individuals given three minutes to address the 

Board Members and Administration. 

MOTION:  By Director Sanchez to approve Consent Agenda – General Business, Items (A) through (C), 

as presented; Second by Director Shelton. 

Moved/Seconded/Unanimously Carried. Ayes: Directors Hernandez, Johnson, Pack, Sanchez, and 

Shelton.  Approved 5-0 by roll call. 

5. Report from the Medical Executive Committee Meeting on March 15, 2023 and Recommendations

for Board Approval of the following:

A. Medical Staff Credentials Report:  Dr. Bogey, Chief of Staff, provided a review of the Credentials

Report from March 15, 2023.  The full written report can be found in the Board Packet.

Item:  Proposed Approval of the Credentials Report; four (4) New Appointments, four (4)

Reappointments, one (1) Allied Health Reappointment, and one (1) Retirement.

No public comment.

MOTION: By Director Sanchez to approve the Credentials Report as presented; Second by Director

Johnson. . 

Moved/Seconded/and Unanimously Carried: Ayes: Directors Hernandez, Johnson, Pack, Sanchez, 

and Shelton.  Approved 5-0 by roll call. 

B. Medical Staff Synopsis:   None.

6. Receive Informational Reports

A. Interim Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Ms. Casillas provided highlights of the Interim CEO Report, which can be found in the Board packet.

 Administration continues to meet with State and Federal legislators on a regular basis to discus

spotential legislation for emergency funding.

 There is a standing meeting with leaders from San Benito County to provide updates.

 Mediation is anticipated to continue through April.

 Revenue cycle audit continues.

B. Report from Finance Committee

1. Finance Committee Minutes -  Minutes of the meeting of the Finance Committee from March 16,

2023, were included in the Board packet.

2. Finance Report/Financial Statement Review - Mr. Robinson provided an overview of the

financial report for March 16, 2023, as well as the February 2023 Financial Statements, included

in the Board packet.

Page 2



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, March 23, 2023 Page 3 

3. Financial Updates

 Finance Dashboard – February 2023

 Status of Supplemental Payments

 Savings Tracker

Mr. Robinson reviewed the Finance Dashboard for February 2023, status of supplemental payments, 

and the savings tracker, all of which were included in the Board packet.  Highlights include: 

 The District is working through various plans in order to avoid filing for Chapter 9 during the

remainder of the fiscal year and is on track to meet debt-service ratio.

 Hospital Administration has been working successfully with plans and government entities to

receive an advance in supplemental funding.

 Senator Anna Caballero is working on legislation to assist with funding struggling hospitals.  The

bill includes adding $1.5 billion into the California health care system.  The public is requested to

write letters of support.

 A draft of the Savings Tracker was presented and reviewed in detail.  The Savings Tracker is a

projection only and a guide, which will be validated with financial advisors.  The document

continues to evolve as operational changes are implemented.

 Registry report was reviewed and included in the packet.

C. Report from the Facilities Committee

Minutes of the meeting of the Facilities Committee from March 16, 2023, were included in the Board

packet.

An opportunity was provided for the public to comment and individuals given three minutes to address the 

Board Members and Administration. 

7. Action Items

A. Discussion of Board Priorities Regarding Potential Affiliation and Strategic Partner Models and

Provide General Direction.

Ms. Casillas requested Board feedback of criteria Administration should focus on when looking at

potential partners.  Feedback included:

 Longstanding history and experience of hospital administration in the central coast region.

 Proven record for turning around distressed rural hospitals.

 No track record of rapid asset liquidation.

 Is able to secure financing and possesses sufficient capital.

 Understands specific terms and conditions, as well as the general obligation bond and payoff.

 Proven track record of maintaining quality of care.

 Is able to mitigate some of the risks and liabilities while further developing assets (clinics) and

expansion of care.

An opportunity was provided for the public to comment and individuals given three minutes to address the 

Board Members and Administration. 

Page 3



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, March 23, 2023 Page 4 

B. Consider Formation Of A Temporary Advisory Committee To Identify Potential Affiliation and

Strategic Partner Models, and Develop Recommendations For Full Board Review (The Temporary

Committee Will Exist Until Recommendations Are Made To The Full Board).

Item:  Proposed Approval of Formation of Temporary Advisory Committee

An opportunity was provided for the public to comment and individuals given three minutes to address

the Board Members and Administration.

MOTION: By Director Sanchez to approve the formation of a temporary advisory committee to

identify potential affiliation and strategic partner models and develop recommendations for full Board

review, with representation to consist of Directors Hernandez and Pack for a three month period;

Second by Director Pack.                              .

Moved/Seconded/and Unanimously Carried: Ayes: Directors Hernandez, Johnson, Pack, Sanchez,

and Shelton.  Approved 5-0 by roll call.

8. Public Comment – No public comment.

9. Closed Session

President Hernandez announced the items to be discussed in Closed Session as listed on the posted Agenda

are (1) Conference with Real Property Negotiators, Government Code §54956.8; (2) Conference with

Legal Counsel-Anticipated Litigation, Government Code §54956.9(d)(4); (3) Report Involving Trade

Secret, Government Code §37606 & Health and Safety Code §32106; (4) Hearing/Reports, Government

Code §37624.3 and Health and Safety Code §1561.32155 – Report from Quality, Risk, and Compliance.

The meeting was recessed into Closed Session at 6:32 p.m.

The Board completed its business of the Closed Session at 7:44 p.m.

A. Reconvene Open Session/Closed Session Report

President Hernandez announced the items to be discussed in Closed Session as listed on the posted Agenda

are (1) Conference with Real Property Negotiators, Government Code §54956.8; (2) Conference with

Legal Counsel-Anticipated Litigation, Government Code §54956.9(d)(4); (3) Report Involving Trade

Secret, Government Code §37606 & Health and Safety Code §32106; (4) Hearing/Reports, Government

Code §37624.3 and Health and Safety Code §1561.32155 – Report from Quality, Risk, and Compliance.

No reportable action was taken by the Board in the Closed Session.

B. Adjournment:

There being no further regular business or actions, the meeting was adjourned at  7:45 p.m.

The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Thursday, April 27, 2023 at 5:00

p.m., and will be conducted in person.

Page 4



DRAFT

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

  SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2ND-FLOOR, GREAT ROOM 
THURSDAY, MARCH 30, 2023 

MINUTES 

Directors Present  
Jeri Hernandez, Board Member 

Bill Johnson, Board Member 

Devon Pack, Board Member 

Josie Sanchez, Board Member  

Rick Shelton, Board Member  

Also, Present In-person/Video Conference  

Mary Casillas, Interim Chief Executive Officer 

Mark Robinson, Chief Financial Officer 

Barbara Vogelsang, Chief Clinical Officer 

Heidi Quinn, District Legal Counsel 

Tiffany Rose, Executive Assistant 

1. Call to Order – Roll Call

Directors Hernandez, Johnson, Pack, Sanchez, and Shelton were present; attendance was taken by roll

call. A quorum was present and the Special Meeting was called to order at 11:06 a.m. by Director

Hernandez.

2. Public Comment

No public comment.

3. Closed Session

President Hernandez announced the items to be discussed in Closed Session as listed on the posted

Agenda are:  (1) Conference with Real Property Negotiators, Government Code §54956.8, 190 Maple

Street; (2)  Conference with Legal Counsel-Anticipated Litigation, Government Code §54956.9(d)(4);

Full details are noted in the Agenda.

The meeting was recessed into Closed Session at 11:06 a.m.

The Board completed its business of the Closed Session at 11:48 a.m.

Page 5



DRAFT

4. Reconvene Open Session/Closed Session Report

The Board of Directors reconvened into Open Session at 11.48 a.m.  District Counsel Quinn reported

that in Closed Session the Board discussed:  (1) Conference with Real Property Negotiators,

Government Code §54956.8, 190 Maple Street; (2) Conference with Legal Counsel-Anticipated

Litigation, Government Code §54956.9(d)(4).

Conference with Real Property Negotiations - the Board directed the Interim CEO to accept an offer

to purchase from the City of Hollister; the City will be completing its due diligence.

No Public comment

MOTION:  By Director Hernandez to direct the Interim CEO to accept an offer to purchase from the

City of Hollister; Second by Director Pack.

Moved/Seconded/Uanimously Carried.   Ayes:  Directors Hernandez, Johnson, Pack, Sanchez, and

Shelton.  Approved 5-0 by roll call. 

Conference with Legal Counsel–Anticipated Litigation - staff provided an update; no reportable 

action was taken. 

5. Adjournment:

There being no further special business or actions, the meeting was adjourned at 11:49 a.m.

Page 6



ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY MANUAL 

Committee Approval:  4/14/23 LD 

Board Approval: 

Policy # BOD   

New:  9/2022 

Reviewed:  

Revised:  Pg. 1 of 1 

SUBJECT: ABSENCE OF SBHCD INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

PURPOSE: The Board of Directors is responsible for appointing the Interim Chief Executive Officer of the 

District, who is responsible for managing SBHCD.  In the absence of the Interim CEO, it is important that a 

qualified administrative person be available for decision-making, operational guidance, and to answer questions. 

POLICY: During the absence of the Interim Chief Executive Officer (Interim CEO) of San Benito Health Care 

District (SBHCD), and in recognition of the SBHCD Organization Plan, the qualified individuals designated 

below shall assume responsibility (in the order presented here) for all aspects of management of District and 

Hospital operations, in collaboration with other SBHCD Senior Executives: 

A. Chief Financial Officer,

B. Chief Clinical Officer,

C. or, designee as appointed by the Interim Chief Executive Officer

 Absence of the Interim Chief Executive Officer will mean the inability to contact the Interim CEO

due to vacation, illness, incapacity, or other absence from the facilities.

 Executives include Interim Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, and Chief Clinical

Officer.

GENERAL INFORMATION 

A. In the event the Interim CEO is unavailable due to absence, the Chief Financial Officer shall be the

Acting CEO responsible for the following, including but not limited to:

 All operations of SBHCD and its facilities.

 Attend committee meetings where the Interim CEO’s attendance is required, such as Medical

Executive Committee (MEC) and sub-committees of the Board of Directors.

 Be consulted on regulatory issues normally brought to the attention of the Interim CEO.

 Represent SBHCD at hospital functions.

B. Issues relating to medical staff matters shall be reviewed in consultation with the Medical Staff

Department prior to taking action. Should answers to questions be difficult to reach or uncertainty exists

in making the correct decision, the designees may contact the President of the Board of Directors for

appropriate direction, and/or consult District Legal Counsel for assistance.

C. Whenever possible and practical, matters involving issues with potentially serious ramifications should

be deferred until the return of the Interim CEO.

PROCEDURE 

A. In the absence of the Interim Chief Executive Officer according to this policy, the Chief Financial Officer

or other Executive Designee is to be contacted as the Acting CEO. Should the Administrative Supervisor,

operator or person initiating the response be unable to contact the Chief Financial Officer, the above chain

of command will apply.

Page 7



BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 
Committee Approval: 4/14/23 
Board Approval:  

Policy #: BOD- 

New: 8/24/22 

 Reviewed:  

 Revised: 

Pg. 1 of 1 

SUBJECT: Ethics Training and Education Training Relating to Work-Place Harassment 

POLICY: 

It is the policy of the San Benito Health Care District to ensure that District Board members receive training in 

ethics according to California Government Code sections 53234, et seq. (AB 1234) training and education 

regarding sexual harassment in the workplace. 

PROCEDURE: 

1. Each District Board member is required to complete a minimum of two (2) hours of ethics training
sufficient to meet the legal requirements of AB 1234 every two (2) years.

2. All District Board members are required to complete at least two (2) hours of training and education
relating to workplace harassment every two (2) years.

Free online training is offered at www.ca-ilg.org/ethics-education-and-training-ab-1234 or through District 
Counsel as a self-serve training program, therefore, there will be no expense reimbursement for this 
mandatory training. 

REFERENCE: 

AB 1234 (Chapter 700, Statues of 2005) Government Code sections 53232 and 53235 Health and Safety 
Code section 32103. 

Page 8

http://www.ca-ilg.org/ethics-education-and-training-ab-1234


RESOLUTION  NO.  2023-25 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

OF SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

ADOPTING AMENDED AND RESTATED DISTRICT 

BYLAWS 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the San Benito Health Care District (“District”) is a local health care district duly 

organized and operating under the terms of the Local Health Care District Law (California Health and 

Safety Code Division 23, Sections 32000-32492 (“Local Health Care District Law”);  

WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors (“Board”) from time to time reviews the District Bylaws 

to ensure they best reflect the organization, operation, strategic mission and vision of the Board; 

WHEREAS, the District Board and staff have reviewed the Bylaws with legal counsel to 

determine if revisions, if any, are needed or required; 

WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed the Amended and Restated Bylaws attached to this 

Resolution as Exhibit A, and has determined it is in the best interest of the District to adopt the them; and 

WHEREAS, this Resolution is not defined as a project under the California Environmental 

Quality Act (“CEQA”), set forth at Public Resources Code Section 21065, Section 15378 of the State 

CEQA Guidelines, because amending the Bylaws will not cause either a direct physical change in the 

environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE DISTRICT BOARD AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The foregoing recitals are true, correct and a substantive part of this Resolution.   

SECTION 2.  The District Board of Directors does hereby approve and adopt the attached Amended and 

Restated Bylaws of San Benito Health Care District, dated April 27, 2023. 

SECTION 3. A copy of this Resolution shall be kept together with the Amended and Restated Bylaws of 

San Benito Health Care District. 

SECTION 4.  The President and Secretary of the Board of Directors and the District’s interim Chief 

Executive Officer are hereby authorized and directed to execute any and all documents and take any actions 

necessary to carry out the intent of this Resolution for and on behalf of this Board of Directors. 

SECTION 5.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

Page 9



This Resolution was adopted at a Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the District on April 

27, 2023, by the following vote. 

AYES 

NOES: 

ABSTENTIONS: 

ABSENT: 

Jeri Hernandez 

President of the Board of Directors 

ATTEST: 

Rick Shelton 

Treasurer of the Board of Directors 

Page 10



AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS 

OF 

SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

SAN BENITO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

ADOPTED BY 

LOCAL HEALTH CARE DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

APRIL 27, 2023 

PREAMBLE 

These Amended and Restated Bylaws are adopted by the Board of Directors ("Board") of San Benito 

Health Care District ("SBHCD" or "District"), a local health care district organized under the terms of the 

Local Health Care District Law (Health and Safety Code of the State of California, Division 23, Sections 

32000-32492 et seq, as may be amended), pursuant to Section 32104 of the California Health and Safety 

Code. These Amended and Restated Bylaws are adopted by the SBHCD Board for the purpose of 

establishing such rules and regulations, not inconsistent with governing laws and regulations, that in the 

opinion of the Board are necessary for the exercise of the powers and duties of the Board imposed upon it 

by Local  Health Care District Law and related statutes. 

I. ORGANIZATION AND PURPOSE

A. Purpose

San Benito Health Care District is organized and operated pursuant to California Health and Safety Code 

Section 32000 and following. The purpose of the District is to establish, maintain, operate, and provide 

assistance in the operation of one or more health facilities or health services at any location inside or 

outside of the territorial limits of the District for the benefit of the District and the community served by 

the District. The District exists for purposes related to community health needs, and for the following 

general purposes: 

1. Encourage competent health care at reasonable cost.

2. Attract a staff of qualified and competent health care practitioners.

3. Oversee efficient organizational methods and sound financial management.

4. Encourage availability of innovative health care methods to the community.

5. Provide opportunities for health care education of community members.

6. Establish and maintain a hospital environment and hospital operations conducive to quality and

efficient patient care.

Page 11



II. OFFICES

The principle office of this organization is located at Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital ("Hospital"), 

located at 911 Sunset Drive, Hollister, California, 95023. 

III. TITLE TO PROPERTY

The title, direction, and control of all property owned by the District is vested in the District Board of 

Directors and the signatures of the President and the Secretary of the District Board, as authorized, shall 

constitute the proper authority for the purchase or sale of property, or for the investment or other disposal 

of trust funds which are subject to the control of the District. 

IV. SURPLUS OF REVENUE

A. Profit or Gain

There shall be no contemplation of profit or pecuniary gain, and no distribution of profits to any individual, 

under any guise whatsoever, nor shall there be any distribution of assets or surpluses to any individual on 

the dissolution of this District. 

B. Disposition of Surplus of Revenue

Should the operation of the District result in a surplus of revenue over expenses, such surplus may be used 

and dealt with by the Board of Directors as they determine within the limits of California Local Health 

Care District Law and these Bylaws. 

V. SCOPE OF BYLAWS

A. Definition

These bylaws shall be known as the District Bylaws, and shall govern the San Benito Health Care District, 

its Board of Directors, and all of its affiliated and subordinate organizations and groups. 

B. Delegation

The Board of Directors may delegate certain powers to the Chief Executive Officer, the Medical Staff, or 

other affiliated subordinate organizations and groups. No assignment, referral or delegation of authority 

by the Board of Directors shall preclude the Board of Directors from exercising the authority required to 

meet its responsibilities for operation of the District and the quality of patient care. The Board of Directors 

shall retain the right to rescind any such delegation. 

C. Medical Staff and Subordinate Organizations

The Bylaws, Rules and Regulations of the Medical Staff and other affiliated and subordinate organizations 

and groups, and any amendments to such Bylaws, shall not be effective until the same are approved by the 

Board of Directors. These shall include an effective formal means for the Medical Staff to participate in 

committees and give input to the Board relative to issues affecting the discharge of Mmedical Sstaff 

responsibilities. In the event of any conflict between the Bylaws of the Medical Staff, or any other affiliated 

or subordinate organization or group, and the provisions of these District Bylaws, these District Bylaws 

shall prevail. 

Page 12



D. Conflicts

In the event these District Bylaws are in conflict with any statute of the State of California governing local 

health care districts, such statute shall prevail. 

E. Policies and Procedures

The Board of Directors shall review and approve policies and procedures for the operation of the District. 

F. Policy and Procedures Manual

The Policy and Procedures Manual memorializes additional policies of the Board of Directors. Each Board 

Member shall become familiar with the Manual in order to carry out the Board Member's responsibilities. 

VI. POWERS OF DISTRICT

The District shall have and exercise the powers set forth in Section 32121 and following of the California 

Health and Safety Code. 

VII. DIRECTORS

A. Number, Qualifications, District Zones, Election and Term

1. Number and Qualifications. The Board shall consist of five (5) elected Bboard members. Each

member of the Board (i) shall be a registered voter; (ii) shall reside within the geographic

boundaries of the District Zone where elected; and (iii) shall for the duration of the member's

term continue to reside within the geographic boundaries of the District Zone where elected.

2. District Zones. The District shall consist of five (5) District Zones designated Zone 1, Zone 2,

Zone 3, Zone 4 and Zone 5. Beginning with the General Election in November 2016 and every

four (4) years thereafter, the election of members to the Board shall take place in Zone 1, Zone

3, and Zone 5. Beginning with the General Election in November 2018, and every four (4) years

thereafter, the election of members to the Board shall take place in Zone 2 and Zone 4.

3. Election. Each Board member shall be elected by the eligible voters within the geographic

boundaries of the District Zone represented by the Board member. Procedures of the election

shall be governed by Local Health Care District Law and the Uniform District Election Law.

4. Term. Each Board member shall serve a term of four (4) years. Board members may succeed

themselves indefinitely. In the event a member is appointed to a vacancy on the Board, such

member will serve the balance of the unexpired term of office or will serve until the next

consolidated election subsequent to the appointment, as provided in Section 1780 of the

California Government Code.

5. Public Meeting Regulations. The District shall cause each Board member and any person elected

to serve as a member of the Board who has not assumed the duties of office to receive a copy of

California Government Code Sections 54950-54962 ("The Ralph M. Brown Act").

B. Duties

1. Attend Bboard meetings.

2. Attend meetings of committees to which the member is assigned.

Page 13



3. Relate community input to the Board.

4. Represent the District in a positive and effective manner in public forums

5. Accept and fulfill reasonable assignments from the President of the Board.

6. Learn enough details about hospital management and patient care services so that the Board

members can effectively question reports of both institutional managers and the professional

staff and evaluate the answers.

7. Cooperate with the annual evaluation of each individual Board member, conducted according to

established procedure by the President of the Board.

8. Participate in the orientation program for new Board members.

9. Participate in a continuing education program.

10. Become familiar with the provisions of California Government Code Sections 54960-54962,

known as The Ralph M. Brown Act.

C. Vacancies and Removal of Directors

If a Board member is absent from three (3) consecutive regular meetings, or from three (3) of any five (5) 

consecutive meetings of the Board, the Board may, by resolution, declare that a vacancy on the Board 

exists. Vacancies so created or vacancies created by other means, such as resignation, death, or moving 

out of the boundaries of the District or District Zone, shall be filled by the methods provided by law. 

D. Compensation

1. The members of the Board shall serve without compensation except that each shall be allowed

actual necessary travel and incidental expenses incurred in the performance of the official

business of the District as approved by the Board.

2. The members of the Board shall be entitled to participate in District-sponsored health and life

insurance by virtue of their status as Board members.

E. Conflict of Interest

No Board member shall realize economic gain from an action of the Board in which that Board member 

participated.  Board members shall be required to follow the Conflict of'lnterest Code adopted by the 

Board of Directors. 

VIII. MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

A. Regular Meetings

Regular meetings of the Board shall be held monthly on the fourth (4th) Thursday of each month at 5:00 

p.m. at a location on the Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital campus. The Board may from time to time,

by majority vote, change the time and place of a regular meeting. The District shall post an agenda

complying with the California Government Code at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to a regular

meeting.

Page 14



B. Special Meetings

Special meetings of the Board may be called by the President of the Board or by three (3) directors. The 

District shall deliver written notice of a special meeting to all Board members at least twenty-four (24) 

hours prior to the time of the meeting as specified in the notice. The District shall post the notice of the 

special meeting in a location that is freely accessible to members of the public. This 24-hour notice  

requirement shall not apply in an "emergency situation" as defined in the California Government Code. 

C. Quorum

For regular and special meetings of the Board, a quorum shall be three (3) members. 

D. Majority Vote

All actions of the Board shall be taken by a majority of three (3) of the Board members. No action shall be 

taken by the Board, however, by secret ballot, whether preliminary or final. 

E. Public Meetings

All meetings of the Board, whether regular, special, or adjourned, shall be open and public in accord with 

the Brown Act, and all persons shall be permitted to attend any meeting, unless otherwise provided by law. 

Public testimony on a particular issue shall be limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes for each 

individual speaker for each issue. The Board may, at its discretion, allow for more or less time if deemed 

appropriate or necessary. 

F. Minutes

A record of proceedings of all public meetings of the Board shall be kept on file. 

IX. OFFICERS

A. Positions

Board Officers shall be a President, a Vice President, a Secretary, Assistant Secretary, and Treasurer. 

B. Election of Officers

1. The Board of Directors shall, at their December meeting, subsequent to the Health Care District

general elections, elect the officers from among its own members.

2. Officers are elected for a period of two (2) years, and shall serve until a successor is elected. No

Board member shall serve more than two (2) consecutive terms in the same office, unless the

Board elects to extend additional terms by majority vote. In no event shall Board member serve

more than four (4) consecutive terms in the same office.

3. To be eligible to be elected to the office of President, the candidate shall have served at least

two (2) years on the Board, provided that the Board may waive this eligibility requirement if

there are no candidates so eligible.

C. Duties

1. President. The President shall: (i) Preside over all meetings of the Board of Directors; (ii) Sign

as President and jointly with other officers as appropriate, and execute in the name of the

District, contracts, conveyances, and other written instruments which have been authorized by

the Board of Directors; and (iii) Appoint chairperson and members of board committees.

Page 15



2. Vice President. The Vice President shall, in the event of death, absence or other inability of the

President, exercise all the powers and perform all the duties of the President.

3. Secretary. The Secretary shall maintain accurate and complete minutes of meetings, call

meetings on order of the President, attend to all correspondence, execute contracts and

conveyances as required, and perform such other duties as ordinarily pertained to his/hertheir

office.

4. Assistant Secretary. The Assistant Secretary shall, in the absence of the Secretary, assume the

duties of the Secretary.

5. Treasurer. The Health Care District shall establish its own treasury and shall appoint a treasurer

charged with the safekeeping and dispersal of the funds in the treasury of the District.

D. Vacancies and Removal of Officers

1. In the event of a vacancy in the office of President, the Vice-President shall fill such vacancy

for the balance of the term. In the event of a vacancy in the office of Vice President, the Secretary

shall fill such vacancy for the balance of the term. All other vacancies and/or simultaneous

vacancies shall be filled by majority vote of the Board of Directors.

2. Officers may be removed by vote of three (3) Board members for failure to perform the duties

of the office or for malfeasance in office.

X. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

A. Appointment and Terms of members of Board Committees

The President of the Board shall appoint members of Board committees. Committee appointments are 

for one (l) to two (2) years, at the discretion of the President. 

B. Standing Committees

1. Strategic Planning Committee

a. Composition: The President of the Board shall appoint all members of the Strategic Planning

Committee to include at least: two (2) members of the Board, one (l) representative of the

Medical Staff, one (1) representative of the Hospital Auxiliary, one (l) representative of the

Director of Nursing, one (l) representative of the Foundation Board, and the Chief Executive

Officer and/or his/hertheir designee.

b. Duties: The Strategic Planning Committee shall meet as necessary during the year to

propose to the Board specific goals and objectives for a minimum three (3) year period. The

long-range plan shall be revised and updated no less than annually.

2. Finance Committee

a. Composition: The Finance Committee consists of the Treasurer of the Board, who shall

serve as its chairperson, one (l) additional Board member appointed by the President of the

Board, the Chief' Executive Officer, and the Chief Financial Officer.

Page 16



b. Duties: (i) assists in establishing valid business and financial contracts; (ii) annually reviews

and recommends a budget to the Board; (iii) makes recommendations to the Board

concerning capital improvements requests; and (iv) makes quarterly reports to the Board of

Directors regarding the Pension Plan.

3. Facilities & Service Development Committee

a. Composition: The Facilities & Service Development Committee consists of two Board

members appointed by the President, one of whom shall be the committee chairperson, and

the Chief Executive Officer and his/hertheir appointee(s).

b. Duties: (i) serves as a forum for consideration of community concerns and opportunities;

and (ii) reviews specific facility projects in conjunction with the Finance Committee.

4. Quality & Patient Satisfaction Committee

a. Composition: The Quality Committee consists of two (2) Board members appointed by the

President, one of whom shall be the committee chairperson, Chief of the Medical Staff or

his/her designee, Chief Medical Officer, Chief Executive Officer and his/her appointees,

and Chief Clinical Officer and his/her appointees.  All Committee members, inclusive of

designees and appointees, shall have voting rights.

b. Duties: (i) assists the Board in its responsibility to ensure that the Hospital provides high

quality and safe patient care, (ii) oversees performance improvement and patient safety

initiatives, and, and (iii) recommends appropriate Board action for quality matters brought

before the Committee.

5. Advisory or "Ad Hoc" Committees

Advisory or "ad hoc" committees may be established to study and make recommendations to

the Board on specific matters. The scope of such committees shall be limited and shall not be

of a continuous or on-going nature. Upon determination by the Board that the period for advice

has passed, the advisory committee shall be disbanded. Advisory committees shall be comprised

of two (2) Board members and are not subject to Ralph M. Brown Act provisions.

6. Additional Committees

Additional committees, permanent or temporary, can be established at any time, and from time

to time, by the President or the Board.

Xl. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

A. Appointment

The Board of Directors is authorized to employ a Chief Executive Officer of the District who shall be 

responsible for the day-to-day management of the District and employment of District personnel in 

accordance with these Bylaws. The qualification of the Chief Executive Officer shall meet the 

requirements established by the Board. The duties of the Chief Executive Officer shall be set forth by the 

Board and the Chief Executive Office shall be evaluated annually by the Board. The State Department of 

Health Services shall be notified in writing if a new Chief Executive Officer is employed, as stated in the 

Administrative Policies & Procedures Manual. 

Page 17



B. Committee Membership

The Chief Executive Officer shall be a member, ex-officio, of all committees of the Board and its adjunct 

organizations, such as the Medical Staff, the Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital Auxiliary, and the Hazel 

Hawkins Hospital Foundation where he/shethey will represent the Board unless in specific case where 

the Board directs otherwise. 

C. Meeting Attendance

The Chief Executive Officer and his/hertheir representatives shall be privileged to attend all Medical Staff 

meetings and Medical Staff Committee meetings and shall be given notice of such meetings. They shall 

be accorded the courtesy of a voice in these meetings, but shall have no vote. 

D. Evaluation

 The Board of Directors shall annually evaluate the performance of the Chief Executive Officer. 

  MEDICAL STAFF 

A. Appointment

The Board shall appoint a Medical Staff. The Board shall approve Medical Staff Bylaws, which set forth 

qualifications for Medical Staff membership and clinical privileges. The Medical Staff shall govern its 

affairs, subject to these Bylaws, to its own Bylaws, and to relevant statutes and legal precedents. 

B. Review and Delineation of Clinical Privileges

The Board shall consider appointment and specific clinical privileges of each practitioner every two (2) 

years. The Board acts upon Medical Executive Committee recommendations regarding renewal and/or 

upgrading and/or restriction of Medical Staff membership and/or clinical privileges for each practitioner 

subject to the Medical Staff Bylaws. 

C. Scope of Privileges

The Board shall require that patient care services under the District auspices be provided only within the 

scope of privileges granted by the Board of Directors. 

D. Reports by Medical Staff

The Board shall receive, question, and act upon regular reports of the clinical activities of Mmedical Staff 

members and of other practitioners actively engaged in providing clinical services in or under the auspices 

of the Hospital. 

E. Quality of Care Procedures

 The Board shall provide adequate support personnel to assist the Medical Staff with organizational 

functions, including Medical Staff membership and clinical privileges (credentialing), physician 

performance evaluation (peer review), and collection and analysis of clinical data (quality assurance, 

utilization review, analysis of uniform levels of care, and risk management). 

F. Termination and Due Process

Membership on the Medical Staff and specific practice privileges are subject to denial, suspension, 

termination, or curtailment for cause by the Board. In such an event, due process shall be provided as 

described in the Medical Staff Bylaws and the California Health Care District Law. 

Page 18



G. Meeting Attendance

The Chief of the Medical Staff, or his/hertheir designee appointed by the Chief of the Medical Staff on an 

annual basis, is requested to attend all regular and special meetings of the District Board of Directors. 

XIII. AUXILIARY AND FOUNDATION

The Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital Auxiliary and the Hazel Hawkins Hospital Foundation shall assist 

in promoting the health and welfare of the community in accordance with these Bylaws and shall delineate 

their purpose and function in their respective Bylaws. The Bylaws and rules of the Auxiliary and the 

Foundation shall be subject to approval of the Board. 

XIV. INDEMNIFICATION

Any person made or threatened to be made a party to any action or proceeding, whether civil or criminal, 

administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact that he/shethey, his/hertheir estate, or his/hertheir 

personal representative is or was a member of the Board of Directors, officer of the Board of Directors 

(e.g., President, Vice President, Secretary, Assistant Secretary, Treasurer), officer or employee of the 

District (e.g., Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Medical 

Officer,  Chief Nursing Officer), or an individual (including a committee appointee) acting as an agent 

of the District, or serves or served any other corporation or other entity or organization in any capacity 

at the request of the District while acting as a member of the Board, officer of the Board, officer or 

employee Of the District, or an agent of the District, shall be and hereby is indemnified by the District, 

as provided in California Government Code Section 825 and following. 

Indemnification shall be against all judgments, fines, amounts paid in settlement and reasonable 

expenses, including attorney's fees actually and necessarily incurred, as a result of any such action or 

proceeding, or any appeal therein, to the fullest extent permitted and in the manner prescribed by the laws 

of the State of California, as they may be amended from time to time, or such other law or laws as may 

be applicable to the extent such other law or laws is not inconsistent with the laws of California, including 

California Government Code Section 825 and following. 

XV. GENERAL PROVISIONS

A. Execution of Contracts. The Board, except as otherwise provided in these Bbylaws, may authorize

any officer or officers, agent or agents, to enter into any contract to execute any contract or execute

any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the District.

B. Seal. The District may have a seal and may alter said seal at its pleasure.

C. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the District shall commence July 1st of each year and shall end June

30th of each year.

D. Annual Audit. The affairs and financial condition of the District shall be audited annually at the

end of each fiscal year by a Certified Public Accountant selected by the Board and the Chief

Executive Officer and a written report of such audit and appropriate financial statements submitted

to the Board. Additional audits may be authorized by the Board.

E. Review of Bylaws. The Bylaws of the Board should be reviewed at least every two (2) years and

revised as necessary.

F. Amendment. These Bylaws may be amended at any properly noticed meeting of the Board by a

majority of three (3) Board members.

Page 19



G. Adoption. Adoption of Bylaws shall by a majority of three (3) Board members, at any properly

noticed meeting of the Board.

These Amended and Restated Bylaws of San Benito Health Care District were approved by Resolution 

2021-05 of the SBHCD Board of Directors on March 25, 2021. 

Amended/Restated:  April 27, 2023 

Reviewed: November 3, 2016 

Revised:  April 27, 2023 

Revised: December 15, 2005 

Revised: May 24, 2001 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 

I, the undersigned, the duly elected Secretary of the Board of Directors of San Benito Health Care 

District, do hereby certify: 

That the foregoing Amended and Restated Bylaws were adopted as the Bylaws of San Benito Health 

Care District by Resolution 2021-05 of the Board of Directors of the San Benito Health Care District on 

March 25, 2021, and that the same do now constitute the Bylaws of San Benito Health Care District. 

Dated:  April 27, 2023 __________________________________ 

Board Secretary 

San Benito Health Care District 

Page 20



San Benito Health Care District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

April 27, 2023 
Chief Clinical Officer Report 

 Emergency Department:

o Visits 2051 Admitted 150 

o Stroke 1 

o LWBS 2 

 Med / Surg ADC    12.0 

 ICU ADC     1.5 

 OB Deliveries 37  Outpatient Visits 102 

Team Projects: 

 OB Charges Improvement Project: 

• Team Leader: Deanna Starr Williams MSN RN C-ONQS
• Team Members:  Michael Brink, Charity Duran, Rebecca Sherwood BSN RNC-OB MNN, Karen

Craig RN BA
• OB Triage, Nursery, and Inpatient Charges Updated
• Invalid charge codes removed
• Corrections made to reflect all levels of care received in department
• Overall total of inpatient bill is less after changes made
• New Charges launched in December 2022
• Increased reimbursement from MediCal shown for deliveries
• OB Population is anywhere from 35 to 60% MediCal so that will make a noticeable difference!
• Increased reimbursement per visit for outpatient visits for MediCal and Private insurance
• Too soon to report trends for private insurance inpatient reimbursement

Page 21



Page 22



To: San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors 

From: Amy Breen-Lema, Director, Provider Services & Clinic Operations 

Date: April 10, 2022 

Re: All Clinics – March 2023 

 2023 Rural Health and Specialty clinics’ visit volumes 

Total visits for March 2023 in all outpatient clinics = 7,552 

 After nearly 12 years’ of service to the hospital, Orthopedic Specialty clinic

and community, Dr. Allen Gustafson’s last day will be March 24, 2023.  Dr.

Gustafson served as medical director of the total joint replacement

program here and treated thousands of patients of all ages during his time

here.  He has served as a mentor and friend to many colleagues and staff,

and we wish him success in his next chapter – we will miss you, Dr. Gus!

Dr. Gustafson pictured here with the Orthopedic Specialty clinic staff. 

Orthopedic Specialty 537 

Multi-Specialty 810 

Primary Care Associates 1726 

Sunset Clinic 911 

Annex Surgeons (General Sx) 222 

San Juan Bautista 312 

1st Street 923 

4th Street 1361 

Barragan 750 

Page 23



Mabie Southside / Mabie Northside SNFs 

Board Report – MARCH 2023 

To: San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors 

From: Sherry Hua, RN, MSN, Director Of Nursing, Skilled Nursing Facility 

Management Activities: 

1. PASRR requirement effective April 1, 2023, by CDPH and CMS, that Acute Hospital  is required to

complete PASRR at discharge before SNF transfers.

1. Census Statistics: March 2023

Southside 2023 Northside 2023 

Total Number of Admissions 18 Total Number of Admissions 9 

Number of Transfers from HHH 17 Number of Transfers from HHH 6 

Number of Transfers to HHH 4 Number of Transfers to HHH 1 

Number of Deaths 1 Number of Deaths 1 

Number of Discharges 11 Number of Discharges 7 

Total Discharges 912 Total Discharges 8 

Total Census Days 1,418 Total Census Days 1,434 
Note: Transfers are included in the number of admissions and discharges. Deaths are included in the number of discharges. Total 

census excludes bed hold days. 

2. Total Admissions: March 2023

Southside From Payor Northside From Payor 

7 HHMH Medicare 7 HHH Medicare 

2 HHMH Medicare MC 1 HHH CareMore 

4 HHMH  Insurance  1 HHH Medi-Cal 

1      HHMH Medi-Cal 

1     Stanford Medicare 

3 Re-Admit HHH Medicare 

18 Total 9 Total 

Page 24



3. Total Discharges by Payor: March 2023

Southside 2023 Northside 2023 

Medicare 3 Medicare 5 

Medicare MC 2 Medicare MC 1 

Medical 6 Medical 1 (Death) 

Medi-Cal MC 0 Medi-Cal MC 0 

Private (self-pay) 0 Private (self-pay) 0 

Commercial 1 Commercial 0 

Total 12 Total 7 ( 1 Death) 

4. Total Patient Days by Payor: March 2023

Southside 2023 Northside 2023 

Medicare 202 Medicare 191 

Medicare MC 19 Medicare MC 35 

Medical 1111 Medical 1,141 

Medi-Cal MC 3 Medi-Cal MC 0 

Private (self-pay) 31 Private (self-pay) 62 

Commercial 52 Commercial 5 

Bed Hold / LOA 5 Bed Hold / LOA 1 

Total 1423 Total 1,435 

Average Daily Census 45.90 Average Daily Census 46.26 

Page 25



To: San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors 

From: Bernadette Enderez, Director of Diagnostic Services 

Date:    April 2023 

Re: Laboratory and Diagnostic Imaging 

Updates: 

Laboratory 

1. Service/Outreach

- Clinic staff training and workstation set-up for electronic laboratory ordering.

2. Covid Testing

- Period: March 2023

- Total Samples tested: 1782

- Positivity Rate: 5.49%

3. Quality Assurance/Performance Improvement Activities

- Started short dated blood product inter hospital transfer to reduce wastage.

- Working on proposal to replace existing chemisty analyzers

4. Laboratory Statistics

- See attached report

Diagnostic Imaging 

1. Service/Outreach

- Due to staffing shortage, the Diagnostic Center next to Ortho clinic is closed for April

- Limited MRI, Dexa, and late Mammo outpatient schedule due to short staffing. Outpatient volumes are

monitored closely in order to adjust outpatient services if the demand warrants it.

2. Quality Assurance/Performance Improvement Activities

- Chargemaster and coding review of Ultrasound special procedures

3. Diagnostic Imaging Statistics

- See attached report

Page 26



January February March April May June July August September October November December

Radiology

2021 1276 1311 1446 1529 1580 1662 1726 1797 1667 1647 1750 1750

2022 1586 1606 1990 1730 1791 1718 1737 1866 1688 1620 1632 1718

2023 1710 1640 1855

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

V
O

LU
M

E
S

AXIS TITLE

Radiology

2021 2022 2023

January February March April May June July August September October November December

CT

2021 489 522 652 637 690 693 672 701 611 639 657 642

2022 603 653 668 736 777 811 845 1004 921 867 839 783

2023 932 845 1008

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

CT Volumes

2021 2022 2023

January February March April May June July August September October November December

ECHO

2021 63 67 92 105 71 95 93 100 90 94 79 114

2022 79 71 118 102 109 108 81 122 114 92 99 94

2023 105 90 146

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

ECHO Volumes

2021 2022 2023

January February March April May June July August September October November December

MAMMO

2021 494 538 693 648 600 648 633 685 711 834 713 698

2022 480 594 804 546 718 777 643 569 591 752 772 629

2023 614 599 788

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

MAMMO Volumes

2021 2022 2023

January February March April May June July August September October November December

MRI

2021 77 104 134 132 113 151 147 173 162 162 146 181

2022 141 146 191 137 180 166 142 180 152 138 143 142

2023 158 144 211

0

50

100

150

200

250

MRI Volumes

2021 2022 2023

January February March April May June July August September October November December

US

2021 495 524 713 662 665 711 738 729 702 659 639 714

2022 616 617 781 756 736 767 728 809 650 617 646 607

2023 722 638 860

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

US Volumes

2021 2022 2023

Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



TO:   San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors 
FROM:   Liz Sparling, Foundation Director 
DATE:   April 2023 
RE:   Foundation Report 

The Hazel Hawkins Hospital Foundation Board of Trustees met on April 13 in the Horizon Room.  

Financial Report for March 

1. Income $   53,286.65 
2. Expenses $    2,318.99 
3. New Donors   0 
4. Total Donations  262 

Allocations 

1. Reallocated Home Health Funds ($4,508.73) to the General Fund

Directors Report 

 All for 1 Employee Giving Campaign is underway and we have 47 participants with $33,514 pledged.  We

added a new designation, our Fundraising Campaign – “Invest in the future of San Benito County

Healthcare, We deserve it!”  Of the total amount pledged, $21,860 has been designated for this campaign.

 Home Health letters went out to donors over the last 5 years stating we will reallocated the home health

funds to the general fund due to the closure of the department

 Hospice has extended out application process until June 15th.  I met with Mark Robinson and will meet with

Sherry Hua, about the future of the program.

 The Auxiliary had their annual lunch on Wednesday, April 12 and I presented at the meeting.

 This year, it has been decided by the Scholarship Committee to postpone the Scholarship

applications until we have a partner or buyer for the Hospital.

 The Dinner Dance Committee will meet in April to start planning.  The date for this year’s fundraiser is

November 4th.  I have confirmed it with the Inn.  Please mark your calendars.

 The majority of our work has been with our Consultant Sara Haynes with Galvin Jacobson and our

Fundraising Campaign– “Invest in the future of San Benito County Healthcare, We deserve it!”  Irene Davis

is the Chair of this Fundraising Committee.

 Sara has met weekly with staff since contract initiated on 3/22 and researched background materials

provided by staff and online to inform context and case development.  She is also conducting interviews

with Board Members and Community Leaders to help build a case for support.

 We have established with our Foundation a $2M gift table and built preliminary portfolio of 25-30

prospects and performed initial research on top tier prospect levels (500K, 250K)

 Discussed with staff providing a facilitated mini-strategic planning process for Foundation board to

develop policy on how emergency funds raised by Foundation will be used and what happens to those

funds (and Foundation) if the hospital faces closure. This would be a virtual retreat where the board

finance, governance, and development committees discuss in their respective committees, report back to

full board, and written policy is developed to confirm alignment and messaging.

Page 31



MARKETING 

 Social Media Posts

Board of Director’s Report April 2023 

Marketing/Public Relations 

Employees: 

 Hazel’s Headlines

 Recognition Weeks for April:

2 – 8 Patient Access Week (Patient Registration) 

16     National Bean Counters Day (Finance) 

16 – 22 Health Information Professionals Week 

16 – 22 National Volunteer Week 

23 - 29 Medical Laboratory Professionals Week 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 

Page 32



COST SAVING MEASURES 

MEDIA 

Public: 

Working with Marcus Young from townKRYER PR agency on proactive PR: 

 Mary Casillas participated in a Podcast with ABC News 7 about HHMH’s Fiscal Emergency and

the issues facing rural hospital’s throughout the state.

 Mary Casillas participated in an interview with CalMatters (online state news organization)

https://calmatters.org/health/2023/04/hospital-closures-california/

 Provided rebuttal to John Chadwell’s article in BenitoLink

 Press Release - HHMH Withdraws WARN Notice to Employees

VIDEO’S POSTED ON SOCIAL MEDIA 

 Doctor’s Day greeting from employees

 Doctors Day medical staff recognition

 Video of support from Chris DeMaggio, Radiology Manager

 Video of support from Joan Moore, Auxiliary Treasurer/Volunteer

 Video of support from Irene Davis, Foundation Board Member

 Working with departments to produce & print forms in-house

Board of Director’s Report April 2023 

Marketing/Public Relations 

Page 33



MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

CREDENTIALS REPORT 

April 19, 2023 

NEW APPOINTMENTS 
PRACTITIONER DEPT/SERVICE STATUS REQUEST PROCTOR 

ASSIGNED 

Ahmed, Areesha MD Medicine/Teleneurology Privs without membership 
Cooper-Vaughn, Margaret MD Perinatal/Ob-Gyn Provisional 

Liu, Hongguang MD Medicine/Gastroenterology Provisional 

Klein, Bradley MD Medicine/Teleneurology Privs without membership 
Kleinholz-Owens, Patricia MD Medicine/Teleneurology Privs without membership 

REAPPOINTMENTS 

PRACTITIONER DEPT/SERVICE STATUS TERM 

Armstrong, Ralph DO Perinatal/Ob-Gyn 

Bogey, Michael MD Emergency/Emergency Active 2 yr 

Jain, Vivek MD Medicine/Neurology Clinic Active 2 yr 

Mei, Carol MD Medicine/Hemat-Oncology Active 2 yr 

Phan, An MD Surgery/Anesthesiology Active 2 yr 

Tolentino-Macaraeg, Anita MD Perinatal/Pediatric Clinic Active 2 yr 

CHANGE OF STATUS 

PRACTITIONER DEPT/SERVICE CHANGE 

Gabriel, Nick DO Surgery/General Surgery Provisional to Active 

ALLIED HEALTH – NEW APPOINTMENT 
PRACTITIONER DEPT/SERVICE STATUS 

Bagley, Tyler CRNA Surgery/Anesthesiology Provisional 

ALLIED HEALTH – REAPPOINTMENTS 

PRACTITIONER DEPT/SERVICE STATUS TERM 

Bailey, Amy CPNP Clinic/Pediatric Nurse Practitioner Current 2 yr 

Baker, Michael PA-C Surgery/Ortho Assist Current 2 yr 

RESIGNATIONS/RETIREMENTS 
PRACTITIONER DEPT/SERVICE CURRENT 

STATUS 

COMMENT 

Basarab-Tung, Jennifer MD Surgery/Anesthesia Provisional No activity in two years-no contract 

Gill, Narinder MD Clinic/Pulmonology Active Contract ended 

Tran, Amy PA-C Clinic Current Voluntary resignation 
Rev: 2/16/2022 

Page 34



April 19, 2023 

INFORMATIONAL ONLY 

COMMITTEE/DEPARTMENT REPORTS – February/March/April 2023 

PHARMACY & THERAPEUTICS COMMITTEE (02/15/23) 

 Reviewed Pharmacy Intervention reports, including:

o Intervention Types

o Pharmacist Interventions – most involve therapeutic interchanges and duplicate meds, as well as

renal adjustments and antibiotic consults.

o Antibiotic Usage for 3rd Quarter 2022 – July and August were higher than September.

o Anticoagulation Report for 3rd Quarter 2022 – there are many new anticoagulation meds

 Discussed Formulary management; Committee members were asked to review the formulary prior to

the next meeting, and let Khiem know if certain meds are not used or obsolete.

 Discussed Liposomal Bupivacaine; Committee members recommended that we discontinue use, and

alternatives are being reviewed with Dr. Bogey.

 Reviewed supply chain issues – medication shortages are posted on the Intranet, and regularly updated.

Noted that we cannot dispense Methotrexate or Mitoxantrone because we can’t compound here.

 Requested preliminary approval for TNKase over Alteplase

 Reviewed costs for Top 20 Drugs; Khiem recommended that we delete all old pneumococcal vaccines

other than Pneumo 20, per new guidelines.

 Remote pharmacy services – discussed after-hours med verification.

 Dr. LaCorte will be working on order sets, and would like to start with oral and IV analgesic sets.  She

will submit a draft for feedback.  The pain scale should be included.

INFECTION CONTROL/ANTIMICROBIAL STEWARDSHIP COMMITTEE (02/28/23) 

 Reviewed the Infection Control Plan for 2022 for reference.

 Reviewed surveillance reports for 3Q22:

o Infection Prevention Report Summary:  Provided details of 3Q22 infections.  Hand Hygiene Audits

by Departments – 3Q22:  Most departments are at or above 85  Our goal remains 100%.

 Employee Health:

o Discussed our influenza strategy for 2022-23.  Our goal is for over 80% vaccination rate.  Reviewed

blood-borne pathogen exposures for 2022.

o Reviewed COVID-19 vaccination and testing data.  Testing is no longer required for employees

who are not vaccinated.

 Blood Culture contamination rates for 3Q22 were reviewed.  Overall contamination rates are at 3.7%

for 3Q22, under benchmark of <5%.

 Reviewed data from Pharmacy on the Antimicrobial Stewardship Program for 3Q22; we are doing well

on Vancomycin usage.

 Reviewed 3Q22 infection rates and antibiotic stewardship data for the SNFs.  Both facilities

experienced a COVID outbreak this quarter.

Page 35



COMMITTEE/DEPARTMENT REPORT Page 2 

FEBRUARY/MARCH/APRIL 2023 

 ASC Immediate Use Steam Sterilization and Inpatient Immediate Use Steam Sterilization reports for

3Q22 were reviewed, and within benchmark.  This report will be updated to a more meaningful format.

 Approved the policy on CAUTI prevention.

 Public Health Updates:  Noted the link for guidelines on Ebola prep; AFLs are out on COVID infection

control, healthcare providers isolation and return work, and guidelines related to outbreaks & reporting

thresholds for COVID.

DEPARTMENT OF SURGERY (03/14/23) 

 Dr. Sinha gave the Chief of Surgery report; we are trying to put together a meeting to discuss the new

scheduling process later this week.  The nurses like it so far, as it is working well.  D. Williams, RN,

OR Director, gave the OR report, and reviewed OR statistics from 2022, and January and February

2023.

 M. Hamilton, RN, Quality/Risk Director, reported on the QAPI reports for 2022 and January/February

2023.

 Noted that the trial on 3-business day release of Block Time has been successful thus far.

 Interim CEO Mary Casillas gave an update on the District’s financial status; we are doing better and

have enough cash to get us into August.  She attributed the improvement to several things, including

some operational efficiencies and an increase in the OR volume.  She thanked the surgeons for their

efforts in performing more surgeries.  We also have another GI provider coming soon, which should

help the scope backlog.

DEPARTMENT OF PERINATAL (03/28/23) 

 We continue to try to clean up the order sets in Meditech.

 Noted that Dr. Cooper-Vaughn is very excited to be starting next month, and will be getting eCW

training on Friday.

 D. Williams, RN reviewed the Cesarean Section Classification policy with Department members

 D. Williams, RN gave the Birthing Center Report:

o Reviewed the Obstetric Quality Indicators from CMQCC for 4th quarter 2022

o Our LOS after cesarean section is right in line with our peer group.

 Discussed Board Certification criteria for privileges.

DEPARTMENT OF MEDICINE (04/11/23) 

 Dr. Arodaki reported that he and Dr. Bogey are collaborating on how our hospital will address the high

risk issues as recommended by U.S. Acute Care Solutions for patients with 1) discharge with

tachycardia, 2) Heart Score for chest pain, 3) NIHSS for Stroke/Dizziness.

 Discussed Board certification as a privilege criterion.

 S. Kerkes, RN, Interim Med/Surg/SCU Director, reported that the census has been pretty busy at 14-15

patients.  SCU has been limited to a census of 2 due to staffing, which is an issue right now.  Shanell

has met with the staff, and is working on updating and fixing things that need maintenance.  B.

Vogelsang RN, CCO, reported that she is recruiting for a permanent Director.

 M. Hamilton, RN, Quality Director, reported that the Patient Safety Culture Survey for 2023 has been

completed, and showed improvement from the prior year.  She announced that Michael Hamé, RN, has

been hired as our new Infection Preventionist, as well as Emergency Preparedness for internal &

external disasters.

Page 36



COMMITTEE/DEPARTMENT REPORT Page 3 

FEBRUARY/MARCH/APRIL 2023 

 Reviewed the Analgesic Order Set as recommended by Dr. LaCorte and the Order Set Committee.  It be

clicked through quickly, and is sorted by oral meds and then IV meds.

 Discussed the issue with the Problem list – it is more difficult to work with now.  Dr. Arodaki reminded

all to search with a capital first letter.  IT is still looking for a work-around on this.

DEPARTMENT OF EMERGENCY MEDICINE (04/18/23) 

 Dr. Bogey reported that U.S. Acute Care Solutions continues to talk about getting rid of scribes;

apparently California is the only place that they are using scribes.  He noted that it would be very

difficult to continue to see 30-40 ED patients per day without scribes.

 Sepsis documentation for Inpatients – a reminder will be sent to the Hospitalists.

 S. Kerkes RN, gave the ED Nursing Director’s report; reviewed the ED dashboard, and they saw 6,284

patients in the last 3 months.  Trauma - we are working on getting 2022 closed out, and reported to

County.  The County would prefer it if we sent this data directly to the State.  Reviewed transfers and

stroke data. The sepsis form has been revised to make it more user-friendly.  Overall, the ED is doing

well, but staffing continues to be an issue.  New admission checklist developed by Shanell to provide

more information to inpatient staff when admitting RE: NIHSS requirements.  ER doctors can

document that they re-evaluated the patient after fluid bolus, and that should satisfy requirements for

sepsis documentation.

 Dr. Bogey reported that Dr. Waleed Hussein will be coming in June.  We are pretty slim on ED

physicians, and also short on PAs at this time, with Abby on maternity leave.  Everyone is doing a great

job, and we have a really good core group.

 Physician badges will be upgraded to the hospital’s new system, which combines an ID badge with the

door access card.

 M. Hamilton, RN, Quality Director, discussed the algorithm for Transfer UNSTABLE Patient ED to

ED.  If we don’t have the capacity to care for the patient, we should transfer to another facility that

does, unless they are on diversion.  Written denial should be requested if we are denied transfer.  These

are ED to ED transfers, not inpatient, so they should be able to accept, even if they are unstable.  B.

Vogelsang, RN, CCO, will look into developing ED transfer agreements with some of our local

hospitals like Natividad, Salinas Valley, and Good Samaritan.

Page 37



www.hazelhawkins.com

San Benito Health Care District 
Restructuring Status & Loan Authorization

Presented to:
San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors

April 27, 2023

1



Presentation Agenda:

• Short-Term Financial Stabilization Status
• Discuss Short-Term Initiatives

• Success of Short-Term Initiatives

• Limits of Short-Term Initiatives on Long-Term Stabilization

• Long-Term Financial Stabilization
• Long-Term Stabilization Tools

• Authority to Obtain Loan to Achieve Long-Term Strategy

2



Short-Term Financial Stabilization Status

3



Short-Term Stabilization Initiatives
The District declared a fiscal emergency in November 2022 because projections indicated the District would run out of cash in

December 2022.  The District has since undertaken initiatives to stabilize short-term operations.

• Revenue from Services. Increasing revenue by adding 3 new gastroenterologists to increase surgery volume.

• Supplemental cash payments/financing: Increased cash flow by $10.7 million from December 2022 through April 2023 that is
attributable to a CHFFA loan of $3.0 million and the acceleration of supplemental payments totaling $7.7 million.

• Cash Flow Enhancements. Increased cash flow by $380,000 per month by negotiating extended repayment terms with CMS
(Medicare) on a 2021 $5 million overpayment recoupment.

• Operational Savings. Generated over $1.9 million of savings by implementing staffing reductions, deferral of wage increases,
and other operational savings, which annualize to approximately $4 million.

• Cash Management Program. Ongoing tight controls on spending and cash management will continue to increase net cash flow
from operations.

• Renegotiated Anthem Agreement. Starting in January 2023, an estimated $2 million in additional annual cash flow is
anticipated from the District’s renegotiated payor contract with Anthem (one of the District’s largest non-governmental payors).

• Analysis of Underperforming Service Lines. Analyzing and evaluating underperforming departments for potential partial or
complete closures. For example, Home Health Services has been closed.

4



Results of the Short-Term Stabilization Initiatives

5

The District increased its actual cash position over its forecasted cash position through February 2023 by over $11 million from
the December 2022 projections. The initiatives that contributed to this increase are summarized in Table 1.

Increase
(Decrease)

in 
Cash

Increase
(Decrease)

in 
Cash

Increase
(Decrease)

in 
Cash

Increase
(Decrease)

in 
Cash

December January February
2022 2023 2023

Beginning cash balance (684,174)$            3,164,071$           5,811,071$           (684,174)$            
Operations

Net cash flow 1,984,612            (392,647)              315,624               1,907,588            
Supplemental cash excluded from initial forecast

HQAF Direct Grant -                          -                          979,971               979,971               
Cost report settlement -                          -                          988,669               988,669               
Other (150,000)              -                          12,531                 (137,469)              

Payment of deferred payroll taxes 1,144,000            -                          -                          1,144,000            
994,000               -                          1,981,171            2,975,171            

Financing
Advances

Property tax advance 937,418               -                          -                          937,418               
Outpatient supplemental -                          -                          3,029,540            3,029,540            

CHFFA loan  (net of repayments) -                          3,059,185            -                          3,059,185            
937,418               3,059,185            3,029,540            7,026,143            

Restructuring expense (114,660)              1,330                   (67,500)                (180,830)              
Capital expenditures 46,876                 (20,868)                87,998                 114,006               
Ending cash balance 3,164,071$           5,811,071$           11,157,904$         11,157,904$         

Table 1 - Increase (Decrease) in Forecasted Cash as of February 25, 2023

 Description 

12/3/2022 - 
02/25/23

In March 2023, the 
District received an 

advance QIP 
payment totaling $3.7 

million that was 
previously scheduled 

to be received in 
June 2023.

https://brileyfinancial-my.sharepoint.com/personal/cfox_brileyfin_com/Documents/Confirmation%20Order%202-27-2023_CLF.docx?web=1


Current Financial Projections

6

The District’s short-term stabilization initiatives extended the “runway” for the District to pursue alternatives. The 
current projections are set forth in Table 2 and reflect the District will be critically low on cash in September 2023.

Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
April
2023

May
2023

June
2023

July
2023

August
2023

September
2023

October
2023

November
2023

December
2023 Total

Cash receipts
Recurring revenue 8,564,277$    9,300,000$    9,100,000$    10,700,000$  9,100,000$    10,700,000$  9,100,000$    9,100,000$    11,750,000$  87,414,277$       
Net supplemental/other revenue 618,044        -                   2,512,189     2,467,865     (1,138,622)    -                   2,433,531     -                   -                   6,893,006           

Total cash receipts 9,182,321     9,300,000     11,612,189    13,167,865    7,961,378     10,700,000    11,533,531    9,100,000     11,750,000    94,307,283         
Operating cash disbursements 10,964,030    11,132,172    10,802,172    12,427,172    10,802,172    13,137,172    10,802,172    10,802,172    13,287,172    104,156,404       
Operating cash flow (1,781,709)    (1,832,172)    810,017        740,693        (2,840,793)    (2,437,172)    731,359        (1,702,172)    (1,537,172)    (9,849,120)          
Less: Restructuring expenses 300,000        250,000        250,000        250,000        250,000        250,000        250,000        250,000        250,000        2,300,000           
Less: Other non-operating expenses 66,731          200,000        200,000        250,000        200,000        250,000        200,000        200,000        250,000        1,816,731           
Plus: Loans -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                        
Net Cash Flow (2,148,440)$   (2,282,172)$   360,017$      240,693$      (3,290,793)$   (2,937,172)$   281,359$      (2,152,172)$   (2,037,172)$   (13,965,851)$      

Beginning Cash Balance 10,784,563$  8,636,123$    6,353,952$    6,713,969$    6,954,662$    3,663,868$    726,697$      1,008,056$    1,855,884$    10,784,563$       
Net Cash Flow (2,148,440)    (2,282,172)    360,017        240,693        (3,290,793)    (2,937,172)    281,359        (2,152,172)    (2,037,172)    (13,965,851)        
Bridge Loan -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   3,000,000     3,000,000     6,000,000           

Ending Cash Balance 8,636,123$    6,353,952$    6,713,969$    6,954,662$    3,663,868$    726,697$      1,008,056$    1,855,884$    2,818,712$    2,818,712$         

Table 2 - Cash Forecast - April 2023 through December 2023 

Description



Short-Term Stabilization Limitations
The District’s short-term financial turnaround initiatives successfully stabilized short-term 

operations and avoided immediate closure.  However, they are not sufficient to stabilize the 
District’s long-term operations.

• Cost of Independent Restructuring. The 2021 study prepared by ADAMS Management
Services Corporation for the District concluded significant capital improvements (in the
hundreds of millions of dollars) were needed to expand services and make the District’s
operations sufficiently competitive to remain independent.

• Limited Working Capital. The District’s days cash on hand has been lower than the
average Critical Access Hospital since at least 2019 and was significantly impacted by
unanticipated events in mid-2022.

• Advance Payments. The District has negotiated advance payments to stabilize
operations to avoid immediate closure, but those advance payments decrease revenue
that would be realized later in the year.

7



Long-Term Financial Stabilization Options

8



Long-Term Stabilization Tools
The District cannot continue to provide the same level of services without restructuring its expenses or partnering with 

a larger system that can bring economies of scale to balance expenses.

• Stakeholder Negotiations. The District concluded state-mandated confidential mediation with its interested parties 
on April 5, 2023.  The District did not reach a resolution with all interested parties that would reduce expenses 
sufficiently and continues discussions with stakeholders outside of mediation.

• Governmental Negotiations.  The District continues to pursue funding options with the State of California and local 
legislators.

• Transaction.  The District and its financial advisors are conducting a disciplined marketing process with the 
objective of executing a transaction with a strategic partner or buyer.  10 parties have executed Non-Disclosure 
Agreements.  A transaction would not likely close until December 2023.

• Bankruptcy.  The November 2022 fiscal emergency declaration authorized a bankruptcy filing but the District did 
not pursue the option at the time in favor of stabilizing short-term finances.  It remains a potential tool to restructure 
expenses if stakeholder negotiations are not successful.

• Reduction in Services.  The District may need to reduce services it offers as a last resort if it cannot stabilize 
operations by reducing expenses or partnering with a larger system.  The District is developing the outline of an 
alternative pathway with reduced services.

9



Loan Proposal to Serve Short and Long-Term 
Stabilization Objectives

The Board is considering granting authority to obtain a loan to serve the short-term and long-term 
stabilization objectives of the District.  Granting authority does not mean the District is drawing-down 

on the loan immediately, but, instead, affords the District the option based on its cash needs.

• The District has obtained agreement in principle from the California Department of Health Care
Access and Information (“HCAI”) that it would consider subordinating the liens of the 2021 Bonds to a
loan on accounts receivable.

• HCAI is secured by a lien on accounts receivable and a lien on the District’s real estate assets. The
District’s real estate is far more valuable than the 2021 Bond debt.

• The District has obtained two indications of interest from commercial lenders to provide financing and
has been in discussions with governmental entities to provide lower-cost financing.

• The authority to obtain a loan gives the District optionality to achieve its long-term stabilization goals if
determined necessary to: (i) extend the runway to complete a transaction; (ii) further stakeholder
negotiations; or (iii) transition to reduced services.

10



11



Interim CEO Report 
April 2023 

Ambulatory Services 
• General Surgery Clinic – We have been encouraged that applications are now starting to move through

the State process.  We will be doing a mock survey to prepare for the State to come in and survey.
• Working with SBCOE to organize immunization clinics for students.

Financial Emergency Update 
• Administration continues to meet with State and Federal legislators on a regular basis to discuss

potential legislation for emergency funding.
• We have a standing meeting with leaders from the County to keep them informed of our situation.
• Confidential mediations have been completed.
• Our real estate agent continues to show the Maple Street property.
• Revenue Cycle – we are looking for a new company to help with audits of revenue cycle.

Foundation 
• A committee is working on their new fundraising campaign.  Their goal is to raise $2M to go toward the

general fund.

Communications/Public Relations 
• Videos will continue to come out on social media.
• HHH was featured in a CalMatters article.
• Working on activities for Hospital Week May 7.

CEO Activities 
• Attending monthly Business Council meetings.
• Attended DHLF board meeting in April.
• CHA meeting attended by CFO.

Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87


	ADP6E0E.tmp
	Slide Number 1
	Presentation Agenda:
	Short-Term Financial Stabilization Status
	Short-Term Stabilization Initiatives
	Results of the Short-Term Stabilization Initiatives
	Current Financial Projections
	Short-Term Stabilization Limitations
	Long-Term Financial Stabilization Options
	Slide Number 9
	Loan Proposal to Serve Short and Long-Term Stabilization Objectives
	Slide Number 11




